Capital Region 100 Columbus Boulevard, 5" Floor
Development Authority Hartford, CT 06103-2819

www.crdact.net

Agenda

CRDA Regional and Economic Development Projects Committee
Meeting / GoToMeeting
Thursday, April 8, 2021
3:00pm

L Approval of Minutes from March 11, 2021 *

II. Regional Agricultural Market — Update/Discussion on Development Planning RFP
III.  Albany/Woodland Retail Project *

IV.  Windsor locks TOD Update

V. CRDA Parking Facilities RFP Discussion

VI.  Project Updates

VII.  Adjournment

CRDA Regional and Economic Development Projects Committee
Thu, Apr 8, 2021 3:00 PM - 4:.00 PM (EDT)

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/189973141

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States: +1 (669) 224-3412

Access Code: 189-973-141




RDA o e
- Development Authortty o crdactnel

Regional and Economic Development Committee
Conference Call
Draft Meeting Minutes
March 11,2021
3:00 PM

Members Present via GoToMeeting: Committee Chai'_r_f_."Mardiai_'f_Leclerc, Board Chair Suzanne

Hopgood, Randal Davis, DECD Deputy Commissi nﬁqr?—‘&lexandfé Daum, Bob Patricelli

Staff Present via GoToMeeting: Mike Freimgfh'f'Anthony Lazzaro and Kim Hart
Guests Present via GoToMeeting: Agriculture VCSEﬁ;r_nissio_ne;r_Bryan Hu11burt, Jamie Smith
(Agriculture Dept) and Martha Page (Hartford Food System) o

The meeting was called to order at 3:.01j;_{pf.h.':l_')_y}_:May0r Lec]“éft_;_ and the minutes of the January 14, 2021
meeting were approved on a voice vote. il e

M. Freimuth updqtéd}ﬁé;C(_)j__g_l_mittee oﬂf_'rf_\g_arious proj édﬁs;_:__, |

1. East Hartford Pl'i':t"):i”ects - All ﬁf@jects are .ﬁi'ggréssing and there are no major changes to report.

2. Bushnell South ;G_arag'é}?ﬁ Constmctlon is wmdmg down and the garage should be operational

St nti 0 closely monitor the health of the restaurants and theaters in the
Front Street district, as well as the Marriott Hotel. All have been severely impacted by the COVID

pandemic éﬂd_-___the loss of co'l'i_j{zention goers, Downtown Hartford employees and UConn students.
Mr. Freimuth noted that two restaurants have been forced to close.

3. FrontStreet — CRDA céntinuesfﬁ :

4, Parkville Market ﬂTheState Department of Transportation has approved the Parkville Market’s
use of space under 1-84 for much-needed additional parking. DOT will now submit the required
paperwork for federal approval.

3. Regional Agricultural Market — Mr. Freimuth introduced Commission Hurlburt and updated
members on the Development Planning Consultant RFP process. Two of the bidders were invited to
make presentations to the Selection Committee on March 3rd. Mr. Freimuth noted that while both
offered impressive credentials, the Selection Committee is struggling with the basic question of what
the Market’s role should be. Bidders were told that a more focused scope would be provided and
that they would be asked for revised proposals.

Commissioner Hurlburt offered some thoughts on his agency’s role, Connecticut’s food industry,
lessons learned during COVID and what the Market could offer. Ie sees the Department of



Agriculture as more of a regulatory and marketing agency and believes that real estate and
development questions relative to the Regional Market are rightly in the purview of CRDA.

The Commissioner suggested that the pandemic has put a greater emphasis on the importance of
Connecticut’s farmers and the state’s food industry in general. Early in the lockdown as grocery
shelves emptied, residents sought out local farmers’ markets and farm stands as a means of securing
food unavailable in grocery stores, as well providing a more socially distant shopping experience.
He noted that, as a result, these retail farm operations saw a 30% increase in sales during this time.
Conversely, those farmers operating at the wholesale level, particularly dairy farmers, saw their
business dry up with the closure of restaurants, hotels and educational institutions.

Commissioner Hurlburt explained that his agency is embarking on a new “CT Glown” media
campaign. He reflected on the need to assist farmers in “stretching the season”, helping them find
supplemental income through things activities such as “hght processmg” While it may not make
financial sense for individual famers to set up space for canning and making jams and salsas, the
creation of shared work and commercial kitchen spaces — perhaps at the Regional Market - could
help many farmers. The Commissioner also cited the need for spacg for small breweries and wineries
and the success of efforts to pair these retall entelpuses with the State S, shellﬁsh industry, which has
traditionally been a wholesale operation. b

Deputy Commissioner Daum questioned whether the Commlss10ne1 saw the Market as being retail-
ot wholesale-focused. Commissioner Hurlburt discussed the idea of the site encompassing both,
noting that the farmers often do not-always limit themselves to one or the other. He cited the market
at Groton Airport as a successful operatlon in splte of the 51te S Iack of ambiance — not unlike the
Regional Market. i

Mr. Freimuth questioned Commissioner Hurlburt about transportation and the role the Regional
Market plays or should play in ensuring adequate food supplies in New England. Committee
members discussed the: staggering fact that should bridges over the Hudson River shut down, New
Englanders w yuld be left Wlth only a three day supply of food.

Mr. Pat celli expressed hlS behef that the net step in the development process should be for CRDA
3 _____tatement of purp03e ’ for the Market, citing the diversity of activities, including light
processing and even meat plocessmg, that might find a home there, The Commissioner offered his
assistance and Support to CRDA as it works to develop such a statement.

The next meeting of the Regidﬁal*& Economic Development Committee is scheduled for April 8, 2021.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:03 p.m.

e,




Summary of Regional Market RFP Short-List Responses

HR&A Advisors

s/r/afm

Team

HR&A Advisors (NYC)
MASS Design Group {Poughkeapsie)
Commonwealth Ag Strategies

Epstiein & Sons Intl. {Chicago}
{tnfrastructure}

SEAM
{National w/ HQ in Glastonbury)

MVI (Maine)
{urban planning / econ dev consulting)

Fuss & O"Neill {site/civil/MEP)

Relevant Experience

HR&A - NYC Food Policy Plan
Stakeholder Engagement, Memphis
Agricultural Business Park, San Francisco
Ferry Bullding Marketplaces, South LA
Grocery Study and NYC Food Plan;

Mass Design -- Stone Barns Ctr. for Food
and Agricutture, Rwanda Institute for
Conservation Agriculture, Fall Kili Master
Plan, Poughkeepsie Public Market,
Franklin Park Master Plan & Mattapan
Neighborhood Ptan {Boston)

SLAM & MV did comprehensive master plan for
Regional Market in 2014;

MVI has done pubfic markets in Rochester,
Wester North Carolina, Portland Maine, Grand
Rapids, Mitwaukee, Salt Lake City, Philadelphia,

Baltimaore and NYC

Task 1 - Reconnaissance =
6 to 8 weeks
Task 2 - National Trends =

Timeframe 2 to 3 months after Task 1 Not Specified
Task 3 - Mission & Concept
6 weeks after Task 2
Goal to provide Information and analysis to
Task 1 - Reconnaissance - Establish develop shared vision of what RM should be,
understanding of (a) broader landscape | considering both its historic function and new
of food and ag in CT, including trends In possibilities as seen
market dynamics & impact of technology | at other markets.
and {b} current role and mission of RM.
Task s Kick-off meeting
2 - Natignal Trends - Examine national s« Comparable Facility Research
trends in food and ag and how they are s Steering Committee Presentationl
expressed in peer ag markets to identify » Key Iinformant interviews
opportunities for this site and «  Update of 2014 Master Plan
Work Plan investment required. e Market Research Update
*  Preparation of Mission Statement
Task3 - Misslon & Concent - Prepare (a) e Steering commlttee Presentaton2
3 options for viﬁlon and mission, {b) «  Draft development strategy {based on
concept plan with proposed governance highest impact programing options for
struciure, and {c} implementation plan RM and varying mixes of public & private
with phasing. investment.)
*  Options for ownership and operations
»  Steering Committee Preseatation3, and
*  Final presentation
Task 1= $25,000
Fee Task 2= $75,000 $51,500

Task 3 = 50,000
$150,000




PROJECT: Albany Woodland Redevelopment
Mixed use building on city owned property

BACKGROUND: CRDA awarded $5.5M (approved by State Bond Commission 7/21/20) from the
Neighborhood Program to a mixed use $21M project at the intersection of Albany Ave
and Woodland Street on a city parcel resulting from a city RFP process. The project
included up to 75 housing units complimented by 20,000 sf of retail/commercial space
with a focus on neighborhood health and wellness needs.

ISSUE: Two critical problems have resulted in a request by the City to restructure the project.
First there was considerable concern and objection to a project with 75 units of housing
at the intersection. Secondly, the developer was unable to secure the various (and
multiple) funding sources, including conventional financing or various tax credits and
grants as envisioned.

RESTRUCTURE: The City has asked that the funds continue to be available as either equity or loans as
incentives in a new project that will continue to focus on the health and wellness goals
of the original project with associated retail space. The CRDA funds would be matched
by additional public and/or private dollars to build out a redesigned commercial project.

RESOLUTION: The CRDA continues to support the redevelopment of the Albany/Woodland property
and reserves the $5.5M initially awarded to be re-allocated for a restructured and
redesigned commercial building of approximately 40,000 s.f. subject to 1/the CRDA
funds being matched by an equal or greater amount of funds; 2/ the CRDA Board
reviewing and approving the specific use and terms of the CRDA funds at a subsequent
time; and 3/the State Bond Commission approving such re-allocation and use of the
funds.




o

S

553

e

OFFICE / COMMERCIAL BUILDING
1135-1161 ALBANY AVE, HARTFORD, T

SITE PLARN

ECTS

CROSSKEY
1T
Achuizine - Fromralon Planieng.

ARCH

/e




S

12 "QYOLALEVH FAY ANVETY LPLLGELL ” i
, SLOILIHDHY M

1202 "50 e ONIQTING TYIDYIWWOD / 301440 NIDIEK . AIASSOND




1135-1161 Albany Ave., Hartford, CT
CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN
April 5, 2021

New 2 Story Commercial & Office Building

CONTRACTOR/CM COSTS
Line Item Description

Crosskey Architects LLC
750 Main Street
Hartford, CT 06103

Construction Costs

General Conditions S 466,837
CM Fee S 503,820
Sub-total CM Costs S 970,657
SITEWORK |

Line Item Description Construction Costs
General Site Work S 96,546
Waste & Debris Removal S 84,574
Site Utilities S 322,918
Paving, Walks & Signs S 510,518
Landscaping S 192,213
Dumpster Enclosure S 5,382
Fencing & Entry Gate S 269,098
Sub-total Sitework Hard Costs S 1,481,250
% of Hard Construction Costs 17%
Sitework w/ % portion of CM Costs S 168,614
TOTAL SITEWORK S 1,649,864
Sitework Cost/Acre S 835,374
Sitework Cost/Building Area s 41
CORE & SHELL

Line Item Description Construction Costs
Concrete Sub-contractor S 523,099
Concrete Waterproofing 3 12,267
Gypsum Cement Underlayment S 55,116
Masonry Sub-contractor S 444,308
Structural Steel $ 98,138
Misc. Metals S 10,028
Carpentry - Rough Framing $ 583,609
Wood Stairs ) 177,933
Roofing - TPO S 191,676
Roofing - Flashing, etc. S 8,984
Insulation S 121,425
Caulking S 33,692
Exterior Sideing - Metal Panel ) 589,172
Storefront System - Exterior S 470,057
Door System - Exterior S 46,330
Gypsum Board S 64,329
Toilet Accessories & ADA Grab Bars S 13,855
Entry Canopy System S 1,909
Elevator S 139,950
Plumbing S 133,471




1135-1161 Albany Ave., Hartford, CT
CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN
April 5, 2021

Crosskey Architects LLC
750 Main Street
Hartford, CT 06103

HVAC S 298,819
Electrical S 209,507
Lighting ) 124,206
Sub-total S 4,352,381
% of Hard Construction Costs 51%
Core & Shell w/ % portion of CM Costs S 495,442
TOTAL CORE & SHELL S 4,847,823
Core & Shell Cost/SF S 120
INTERIOR FIT-OUT

Line Item Description Construction Costs
Carpentry - Rough Framing 5 194,537
Carpentry - Interior Trim, Millwork, Cabinetry S 406,228
Storefront Systems - Interior S 285,310
Door System - Interior S 140,486
Gypsum Board S 192,986
Acoustical Ceilings $ 93,106
Painting $ 136,797
Wallcoverings S 43,075
Flooring S 290,560
Plumbing S 44,490
HVAC S 99,606
Electrical S 209,507
Generator S 48,611
Lighting S 372,616
Security Camera S 2,073
Voice & Data S 126,266
Sound Masking S 7,182
Sub-total S 2,693,438
% of Hard Construction Costs 32%
Interior Fit-out w/ % portion of CM Costs $ 306,601
TOTAL INTERIOR FIT-OUT S 3,000,039
Interior Fit-out Cost/SF S 74
|TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS S 9,497,726
TOTAL COST PER SF S 234.92
‘Building Statistics

SITE ACREAGE 1.975
BUILDING AREA (SF)

Basement (SF) 0
First Floor (SF) 20,215
Second Floor (SF) 20,215
TOTAL (SF) 40,430




Date:

CITY OF HARTFORD

DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
260 Constitution Plaza
Hartford, Comaecticut 06103

Telephone: (860) 757- 9040

LUKE A. BRONIN Fax: (860) 722-6074 I. CHARLES MATHEWS
www.hartford.gov INTERIM DIRECTOR
February 16, 2021

From:

To:

Ce:

Project:

Subject:

I. Charles Mathews, Interim Director of Development
Services

HRA Members
Community Stakeholders

Albany and Woodland

Proposed Delay of the LDA Agreement between the City of
Hartford/HRA and 7 Summits Realty

For the past four years, the City of Hartford/HRA has supported and worked
with 7 Summits Realty to create a viable project at the corner of Albany and
Woodland streets known as the Albany/Woodland Project.

Over the course of the last 6 months, the Department of Development Services
has made every effort to ensure transparency and communications with the
developer, community stakeholders, the Hartford Redevelopment Agency, and
potential funders as it relates to the progress, challenges, and scope of the
project as proposed by 7 Summit Realty, LLC.

On December 10, 2020 an HRA mecting concluded with a recommendation
for the approval and execution of a Land Development Agreement (LDA)
between the City of Hartford/HRA and 7 Summits Realty.

-

@




Newly Surfaced Issues and Challenges

The day after the December HRA meeting and over the last several weeks,
there have been a number of issues that have surfaced that may adversely, and
materially, affect the successful completion of the proposed development
project. These issues were brought to DDS’ attention via communications with
the developer, potential funders and others. Items which have changed or
remain uncertain amongst these parties include:

The housing unit mix (Affordable vs Market)

The shifting number of housing units

A possible decrease in the development footprint

The proposed funding stack

The ability of some funding sources to co-exist with other proposed
sources

These critical business concerns must be resolved for DDS to gain a complete
understanding of the project scope. A development agreement cannot be
finalized without an agreed upon development plan. Such plans must be
consistent with approvals made by the City Council and the HRA, as well as
with representations made to the community.

New & Existing Community Realities
As stated above, the City of Hartford and the HRA have supported 7 Summits
Realty project for 4 years. It is important to acknowledge a number of ongoing
and new realities that may impact the Upper Albany community:
e The Covid-19 pandemic
e The push for market rate units
» The desire to eliminate housing from the project all together
e 770 units of new affordable housing within a 2-mile radius including
Willow Creek (formerly Bowles Park) and the Village at Park River
(formerly Westbrook Village).
¢ The corridor’s ongoing need for off-street parking
e Synergy between multiple and diverse funding sources
» The market impacts of the proposed retail/commercial element at the
Village at Park River site (1/2 mile away)

(1)




While the City and the HRA continue to be supportive of a viable plan at the
Albany/Woodland site, the proposed plan has not benefited from an
independent, reliable analysis of the factors listed above. That analysis could
inform and impact decisions, leading to a financially viable project that looks
very different from what is proposed.

Next Steps

The information gathered by DDS, coupled with the lack of data and analysis
associated with our existing and new community realities, reinforces the
project’s current financial instability. Therefore, in the best interest of the City
of Hartford, the HRA, and the developer, DDS has concluded that it will not
proceed with an LDA agreement at this time. DDS has proposed a “pause” on
the ongoing activities of this project, including the execution of the LDA
Agreement, for a period of three to seven months. With this in mind, and with
the continued goal of developing a successful project for the Upper Albany
community, DDS will commence the following actions:

Utilization of a 3" party Mixed Use Development Consultant

Due to the complexity of the proposed project (funding sources, unit mix,
changes to the site layout, and unforeseen/under analyzed market realities), the
City, will engage a 3rd party, Mixed Use Development Consultant to provide
technical assistance to ensure that any proposed project at the site will have
more than a reasonable chance of success. In addition, the Consultant will
work to identify other alternative project configurations based on current
trends, data, community wants/needs, and available funding sources.

The decision to engage a Consultant is an industry best practice which serves
to better inform policymakers, city officials, community stakeholders,
residents, legislative and regulatory bodies, and would be developers interested
in investing in our city. The City will utilize the Consultant on an on-call basis
to vet and analyze all future redevelopment projects with a focus on
practicality and the highest and best use as it relates to housing, office, retail
and commercial units along the City’s neighborhood commercial corridors.
Project scope, configuration, revenues, rental absorption rates, and feasibility
of potential funding sources would all be independently examined.




Within the next 30 days, Development Services will be seeking an
independent, qualified mixed-use development consultant to assist in ensuring
that projects, such as Albany & Woodland, are well-structured, data-driven,
and financially feasible. This will save all parties time and upfront costs. DDS
intends to keep all stakeholders regularly updated as it navigates this process.




Windsor Locks Station TOD

Existing Plans

Windsor Locks currently has a rail
station on the Hartford Line, located
south of its town center.

A DOT plan for moving the station to
town center is in place and funded.
Estimated cost of $63 million,
includes 500 foot platform, track
wark, streetscape improvements
and relocation of MOW yard.
Construction is scheduled to

commence late 2021.

$45 Million in funding for the station has just been bonded by CT-DOT, and another $17.4
Million CRISI grant award from FTA for Windsor Locks Station was secured in March, 2020.

A $62 Million investment - 160-unit apartment project, converting the adjacent Montgomery
Mill building, is complete and is fully rented out.

Linkage to Bradley International Airport —CT Transit will operate BDL Shuttle upon opening of
new station.

An Approach (the Station Market)

Windsor Locks seek US DOT (Build America Bureau) support to develop a Windsor Locks Station
Area TOD Plan with the following attributes:

L]

o

A public market (similar to Pike Place Market in Seattle) incorporating station functions
(ticketing machines, waiting area, etc.).

Rail platform and “up and over” built by CTDOT.

Multi-level parking garage in lieu of surface parking lots or as 2™ phase after surface lot
to provide shared parking for rail station, public market, retail and residential users of
mixed-use building and Senior Center.

Mixed-use retail, institutional (Windsor Locks Senior Center) and residential
developments on five redevelopment parcels adjacent to or directly across the street
from new station.

Pedestrian bridge over historic Windsor Locks canal to connect station to canal bank,
Montgomery Mill project and DEEP operated Windsor Locks Canal Trail State Park.
Adaptive reuse of adjacent Historic Station as welcome center, coffee shop/bistro and
small batch brewery.

The proposal involves:

Q
o]

e}

A public-private partnership to develop the public market.

Private development and/or public-private partnerships to develop the mixed-use
projects on five adjacent parcels.

State and federal funding for the rail station platform (IN PLACE).




o A public-private partnership for development of a parking garage.
o A public-private partnership for the adaptive reuse of Historic Station.
o Each component eligible for full or partial funding from USDOT (Build America Bureau).

Progress

e Site Control. The Town of Windsor Locks holds option to purchase three of the five
redevelopment parcels, including the three acre site next north of the station site and two sites
directly across the street. The fourth site is owned by the Windsor Locks Housing Authority and

the fifth site is privately owned with the owner seeking to redevelop with a mixed-use structure.

The town will consider taking the fifth site via eminent domain if required. The Town already
owns Historic Station.

e The Town has established a Downtown Tax-Increment Financing district in place that is already
producing revenue that may be used to help pay for the project (or guarantee debt).

e The Windsor Locks Industrial and Economic Development Commission will be designated as a
downtown development authority pursuant to existing statutes.

e Concept plans developed for the station market, along with the residential and retail structures.

e A feasibility study for the public market is complete, with positive results.

e A business plan for the public market is complete and awaiting implementation.

e An economic impact review of the public market is complete, estimating 400 new direct jobs
and 1,000 new total jobs, including direct, indirect, and induced jobs.

e CTDOT has redesigned the surface parking lot to accommodate a future parking garage above.

Individual Sites

Windsor Locks Commons (255 Main Street).

e Private development or public-private partnership to construct mixed-use building with
restaurant and Windsor Locks Senior Center on ground floor and five floors of apartments
(approximately 65 units) above,

e Option price $1.7 million.

e Build America funding, State and Federal LIHTC and other funding sources may be available.

Shared Parking Garage

e Either on its own with aid of consultant or via the Master Development Agreement, issue a
request for proposals to develop privatized components.

e Structure deals for each component of the project.

e Build America Bureau funding may be available.

e Site is owned by Amtrak subject to long-term lease to CTDOT. Sublease may be required.

246 Main Street

e Existing, fully-tenanted commercial building.
e Mixed-use residential over commercial use anticipated.
e Option price $595,000.




e On-street parking and site work including 16 rear parking spaces will be added via $1.8 million
TOD/Responsible Growth Grant (IN PLACE).

252 Main Street

e Site vacant.

e Mixed-use residential over commercial use anticipated.

e Option price $345,000.

e On-street parking and site work including 50 rear parking spaces will be added via $1.8 million
TOD/Responsible Growth Grant (IN PLACE).

254 Main Street

e Privately owned piece. Owner seeks to redevelop with mixed-use residential over commercial
building.

s On-street parking and site work including 22 rear parking spaces will be added via $1.8 million
TOD/Responsible Growth Grant (IN PLACE).

e Town will consider acquiring site via eminent domain if needed.

Windsor Locks Housing Authority Site

e Quasi-municipal agency seeks to redevelop with mixed-use affordable residential over
commercial building.
e Build America Bureau, State and Federal LIHTC and other funding sources may be available.

Historic Station

e Adaptive reuse as welcome center, coffee shop/bistro and small batch brewery.

e Exterior restoration fully funded and in progress via STEAP, SHPO, Urban Act and community
fundraising efforts.

e Interior restoration to be completed using State and Federal Historic Preservation Tax Credits

e Long-Term Lease to private developer in negotiation.




Nl

—

658281 “oN fpalosg uossspuy BiaqBug tezioro | SLITLIHIYY s womn Twmen | oo

Yosaniml  Biogbua |

S3DVdS ¥S SN aIXIW
SIDVAS ¥ 1O1 IDVRNS

S3DVdS 08F~
STEATI Y RNONYLS
ONEYd
SLNN ONISNOH H19-ONZ
¥AUINDD
YOINZS 45 000°0Z

' 34vD 43 005°1 JOOH Is1
ONDRIVd  TIATT1 ¥3MOT
35N GIXIW

45 005°61 400 ANE
45 005'9Z ¥OOH ISL
NOILVIS/IIXIvN

ATOYVLLINGY
14145 00051

; dWv¥ OL NOISNYdX3
=1 TVILNILCd /M LOT ONDRIVA MAN 1
4 NOILZINNOD vd 1253d "H
MAVd DINDId "D
3O0RG TYNYD

MOOTIAAD

TYNYD/AVATIVAM NVRILSIAd
FUSYD OLTIVAL ~
INLYIS YFLVM/HTAR
ANNOY¥DYIANN aISOdXI
TOVHHAL UVL/INVINYLSTY
VZVd LAV

O wi

< d U

Advd [DS3d "0l

TIVAL TVNYD SHDOOT1 ¥OSANIM. °6
Y3IAR LNDIDINNOD '8

TVYNVYD SHDOT IOSANIM. “£L

NOILYLS TV 3NN QICALIVH MIN 9
NOILVIS NIVYL DRIOLSIH 6

"AJA3Y TIIW AYIWODINOW 7
3SNOH F11SVD DIROISIH '€

SOUH VIDIEIWWOD FaNLNd '
1NOIVANNCY MaN L




TZOT/ST/E

’ 1
stoz/az/e Ply-uj-quedsy OOUIOqUTIAN STA HREHHHY . uhm”uu_\_vo_””“_uWnujﬂﬂ_:vaz%M>E - ainydesay
Aemuapun sBunioq 038 ‘Bunsay (105 ¢ ‘LOREIPALAY PERRER * g 1naR 1 rsHd JuoIIAY
pauadg "
"panja3a; Aouednaap Jo ey 6T0%/z/v | 6T0Z/0T/T |8TOZ/0Z/ZT|  uec)2dpug [ uoponasuod 000'005'€s | W/N | wr'ss WA Aunwuo) J9pEN S]IOHEd
|
uopINNsLod Ul 8102/02/6 *doid vaud 000’000°LTS ¥/N Wit sderey adeten Yinos ||3uysng
9315 J0 JUaAWKC[3AIP L3M SDURISISSY 19315 JO
| PP e j0 faus
Jadojenap [eRuapisal Lam uoneodau umol efu ETOZ/ST/T efu IuBI9 SplaYUMOIE 0030 000°000°T 4 z/u agL Juippin |euolieN - uoiduiman
8T/¢€ pajjaoues uawdojanap || ||EL J8RN0 JOf YoM ays
9T02/ZT/L | 910Z/ST/6 gfu ueip WY veqin 000’0002 §| Bfu pue sjuaWRAoIdWL 3IMANLSEYU] [IBIA UCZUIOH - PJofeH jsel
WNEHED._E juapisal
234U] pUe UONELS BIY UMC] ._UELOM
"UMOL Yitm paudis NOW groz/oz/e plE-Ul-uRIS 000'000°T s efu e Buipnul ‘sainPnas payaig syuswanodw) Auadold
* 4N} jo uonijowap pue y PooyIOquIRN - PiofHEH 35Ed
sl10isin
- Ppa|qesip Joj Aejnaned
*aanydesay JUOLIINY 8102/0Z/6 ple-uruels CODOYETS efu “j4ed 3y UM puE 0} S53008
IIM paudis spuswsaudy pasoidw g saedas Juipnput J}Bd JINTY IBAUD - POJIEH 3587
“ied Jany 1839 OF SIUILIDACIW| 7
30 Ul UWdOPAID 7
YayD pue saueynsuod 3ujuuerd 8T0Z/T/9 pie-ur-quesn 000’0058 efu |eljuapisal 1o} mojje o) BIE[d SI9puncd - piojuey I5e3
Jadojaasp ‘'umol Yiim 2nuijucs suoissnasig uZisap a3e.en 1 dujuleld Jalseln
Apms 3ue] 1aAlIS D0JYD
(302f0ad NGHI U} PAPURWILLOI3S SIUaWaAodwt suswasoldw] _
*paAjos2d 3 O3 SINSS| IUBUUIBW 6ODZ/ P/ Joj NdO 03 uand spuny Jo aoueleq) £88'TI0'TS gfu 20deI5]39.5 PUB DY|EMSS0LD QUET JAA|IS - PIofIEH 35E]
w5 Apiqen e|dities udjsap y|emapls uesy 'SH/EMBPIS MIU JO UORE(|EISY] 7
. 3l UMpooD Uy ada|00
uois|diwes Buieau o || seld pue | asetd 8T02/5T/L | 8102/12/9 ple-upjuels 000°000°t% efu uaLudo|anap MU AEPOLILICIIE 0} UMpeoD JEAU SIUIWR0IL]
saul| 93eulelp Mau Jo UoRE([RISU| adeuieiq - piojIEH 3se3|
Aenuapun Jadojanap am ays
Jt 1P umoL If f la] 810Z/T/9 ple-urueID 000'0002LS gfu dij|nw JauLoy jo RARpIS sewaury
9T0T/TT/L pue UoRljoWap ‘UoRsInbaY IFEIMOYS ~ PIoJUIEH Jse]
| adesen
uopaldwos Supesu iom 1 YHON 1S 3uold 38 sjuzweacidu 23eed
uawanodul Utelp wiols a3eien 8T0Z/ST/L 2nUpuadxa ¥ayD 1w3g 000'000°ES efu pajefal 5 Suyooidiazem pue SuswdAoIdu] PHIsIg IS oL
adeuielp WIO3S ‘UOR2ISIAIL] SRAWIN|ODAUOLY
e sjuRluaAcidiwl yjemssol g Buiaed
8T0T/8T/TT . SjuaLwaAcidl g uatdopAIpal
panss| 8102/52/L Ple-uijuesn 000°050°T$ efu 103 uBisap 1g Bujuued e [EuoHIaY paosuey
d4Y Bujuue|d wsy Buo| ‘AeAuIpUN SI5E3] [BULIOY
SNIEIS [EACddY pieog |encddy 21npPnis Junouny Hun Paloid
ISHINWOD | YaED oy padeusAl QD |43ddaL| 4L
puog

53991014 Juswdojanag o1WOU0I] pue [BUOIZaY YaHd




000°000°8T $ 020Z/9T/TT

swdojeasp-a.d 0zoT/TZ/L Aynbafuecy 000°00S'S$ wrzs A 109f04d 35N paxXIL LORON.ISLCI MaU puejpoop/Aueqy

_

SIUILIYSIGIN)SL JOJIAIXT UM slaumo Apadoad Noojg

M3inas Ul spaaloud Jauio fulRIN £8-647T 8107/0Z/6 | 810Z/02/6 Aunba pue uect 000°000°4S - N pooyIogy31aU 1sIsse CF puny 10 JUIWYS]|qels3 peaymo.ly - oNOQg

_
Aesazpun sssaold uoid8[as a3Is 8T02/02/6 | 8T0T/02/6 210U MOJ} YSED PUE UBDT] 000°00S8$ | wLzes N 24035 A122045 gnH AyyeaH - oNoa

smels [enosddy pieog ainpnis unowy yayd | Jal éauoz uonidussag walold
uoISSILIWOD vayd asiwold
puog

s1a9f0.d Juswdojanapay vYaud






